Nu=ber Milepost
1 48.2 699
2 51.9 310
. 3 52.1 955
5 52.4 307
B 52.5 197
R 52.7 -84
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Constructed during the wiazer of 1995 znd summer of 1906, these
seven tunnels wera important features-of tha "Loop District" between
Mile 48 aand Mile 52, the most expeasive and difficult piece of con-
struction undertaken by the Alaska Ceatral Railway Company. The only
structures remaining of the "Loecp District,"” the tunnels should be
included on thes National Rezister of Eistoric Places in recognition of
a2a outstanding achievement in tha history of Alaska railroad enginearing.
, During the surmer of 1505 Alaska Central engineers studied various
routas to Turmagain Arm. Ths problea coafronting the engineers was how
to build a railroad froa a 1,050-foot elavation at Mile 45 to sea leval
t Mile 62 without exceeding 2 three parceat grade and a twelve degree
linit of curvature. Severzl routes were available. One of the most
attractive routes, surveyed by eagineers o: the original Alaska Central

Cozpany, followed the wastarly tountain sides of the upper Placer Valley.:
Another possibility was to build the road from Sunrise Station (Mile 34)

to the mining town of Sunrise, and thea construct a bridge across

| Turnagain Arm to Bird Poiat. During thz suzmer of 1905, however, chief -
“eagineer W. P. Poland and locating enginezer W. A. Kyle ran seven pre-

gin
lizipary lines im the uppar Plzcer Vzalley, finally locating an alter-
native route shorter in dls~a*ce This route was later known as the

"Loop District." ’

In the apprdach to the uppar Placar Valley, the road was constructed

on the westerly side of th2 mountains. a4t Mile 48.2, the line passed
throuzh a 700-foot tunnel oz a2 fourteea-dagrez curve to the right, with
a total curvature of 238°., Much of this turn was made on a 1,600-foot
trestle on a steep side hill. Tha line was then reversed to the left on
azotker fourteza degree curva with a totzl curvature of 213°, thereby

- bringing the line to ths eastarly countaia sides. Near Mile 49 the line

ia:, 2nd thea —2de a complete loop, the road’
pPassing under itself in Mile 30 zad Mila 351. Th%ﬂ line then followed
the pountain side, crossad tha2 Placer River for the fourth time, and

then passed through six shert tunnels, agzragating 2,700 feet, in Mile.
52. By passing through tha2se timnels, tha road avoided a precipitous

zssed close to Barlett Gl=z
1
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‘canyon from 150 to 200 feet 2bova tha river. Near Mile 54 the line left

the side hill, crossing Placar Uver oa 2 high bridge, 1,580 feet in

leagth, to reach the Placer Rivar Valley. The line then descended the
valley on an easy grade. (Atwocd 1907: 19G; US AEC 1916: 29-30)

Alaska Ceatral forces b2gza work oa tunzel 1 on January 16, 1906.
As a snowslide blockad the south end, thz tuanel was driven entirely on

“tha north end with straao pow2r and drills. Later, due to excessive
ezt in the tuzmel, tha cozpany utilized za air compressor with a capa-
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city of three to four drills. 2lthough tha coz; u

in keaping the force up to stancard nuzber ox o

character of the rocl, it enceouniarszd no pred -

"The charzzter of rozx in i

0zing a nerd dlocky s.i:iz2 ZuTa2s 2T oTLpni anglas o the amlii o
tunnels. Thne rock driilzd and dbroxe 2asily and zlmost o the thecrsijical
lines of che tunnel.' (''Methods...' 1909: 231) The tuanal was wicane
to give a minimum clzzrance of eightesn inchas for the zmaxioum lengrh of

passenger car. .The size of tha tunnel was saventean feet wide betws:zp
timbers, and twenty~one feet froz the top of rail to clzaraace at tha
top of the tunmel. Tizber was used for about 400 feet in the north end.
The balance was left uvatinbesred. Later, howzver, it had to be lined
nearly its whole length. Completed on October &, 1906, tunnel 1 was
estimated to have cost tha Alaska Central abou: $97,000. "{ethods..."
1909: 277) :

Tor the construction of tumnels 2 through 7 in Mile 52, the Alaska
Central employed Rich and Harris, a leading construction flra in the
Pacific Northwest. According to the terms of th2 contract, the tunnels
and grading were to ba completed by April 1505. Beginning work in late
October 1905, Richard Harris established a large camp at the north ezd
of the coryon (the present site of Tuanel Sectioa) and worked on the
approach cuts and cuts adjoining tunrnels 2, 3, 2ad 7. Oa December 1505
the contractors begac drilling by hand the north neadlno of tunnel 2,
and the south heading of tunrel 3. Oaly about twenty-feat was drlven on ~--
tunnel 2, and fifty-feet on tunnel 3, before ths contracting company —
abandoned the project. The contractors discovarad that the work was too -
costly and that it was too difficult to attract and retaln laborers oa
the project. ('"Methods..." 1909: 276)

In early spring, 1906, Alaska Central forces resumad ninor work on
the tupnels in Mile 52. Contracts were let for drilling by hand tunnels
4 and 5. Vork on tunn2l 5 began on December 24, 1905; the tunnel was
completed on May 16, 1906 at a cost of zbout $18,000. Contractors tazan
work on tunnel 4 on June 21, 1905 and completad the project on Novezmber
30, 1906 at an expeas=2 of about $22,600. Thes=2 tunnels were the least
expensive to construct among the seven.

In the meantimz, G. A. Kyle, the locating engineer, was sent to
Seattle in order to arrange for the purchase oi zdditionzl equipnent to
operate six drills in tunnels 2, 3, 6, and 7. 1t was decidad that work
should be dona in two hzadings at once. ('"Methods...'" 1909: 276, 281)
With the construction of a 130-foot suspension tridge across the gully
to the north portal of tunrel 2, znd ths layicg of a pipeline from tha
compresscrs across tha bridge, Alaska Ceatral forcss resucad intensiva
work on tunnels 2 and 3 under the direction of gz2neral superintenden:,
Martin Moran. Tunnel 2 was cozpletad or May 12, 1906 with the use ol
air drills. Company forces working on both ends simultansously, tunaz2l
3 was finished on July 11, 1906. As most of the air drills weare usec o2
both ends of tunmel 7, work on tunnel 6 was relacively slow, although it
was one of the shortest tunnels in the systenm. Iearly 140 days were
necessary to coaplete tunnel & on Noveaber 7, 180 Tunnel 7 was coz=-
pleted on Noveamber 4, 1205. ("Methods..." 1903: 276—77)
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achieverent im railroad engineering. Tne district did not of course
escape criticism. .Some critics, nazely John E. Ballaine, who fourded
the original Alaska Central Railway Company, regarded the district as a
waste of money. Ballaine arguad that the road should have bheen con-
structed along the westerly mountain sides of the Placer River Valley to
the head of Turnagain Arm. This route gained additional support in 1912
in the Alaska Railway Commission, which was appointed by President Taft
to investigate railway routes in Alaska. In 1914, however, the Alaska .
Engineering Commission confirmed the "Loop District' as the least expen-
sive route through the Placer River Valley. Thus, in 1915, when ordered
to construct a trans-Alaska railroad from Seward to interior Alaska, and
to purchase the property of the Alaska Northern Railway (the successor
to the Alaska Central), the Alaska Engineering Commission decided to

incorporate the "Loop District" in thz Governament-constructed, 2and -owned
- railway system. -

Since the failure of the Alaska Central in 1908, the bridges in ,
the "Loop District'" were not maintainad. By 1916, when the Government .-
began active construction on the trans-Alaska railroad, only gasoline
cars and light trains were able to pass through the "Loop District"
without danger. Alaska Enginesering Commission forces thus spent the
years 1917 and 1918 rehabilitating, and in some instances, entirely
reconstructing the bridges. In 1919, the Alaska Engineering Commission
forces enlarged the tunnels in accordance with the specifications of
the Interstate Commerce Cormission. The enlargement of tunnels 2
through 7 was completed in November 1919. At the same time, timber
portals were erected for several tunnz2ls, and a snowshed was constructed
at the south end of tunnel 1. This work continued until 1920, when
tunnel 6 was finally ticbered. (Alaska Railroad Record September 30,
1919: 369; October 21, 1919: 393; March 16, 1920: 145)

 Through the years the tuanels in the "Loop District' have been
periodically retimbered. However, the '"Loop District' is no longer in
existence. In 1950-51, the Alaska Railroad altered the line betwean
Mile 47.5 and Mile 50.8, thereby reducing the distance batween Seward
and Anchorage by 1.1 miles. Completed at a cost of about $1 million,
the new line was openad to traffic on November 1, 1951. The new line
sacrificed the former 2.2 percent grade (compensated) for a 3 percent
grade (compensated), and eliminated five "Loop" bridges, one snowshed,
and tunnel 1. Tunnel 1 is reportedly in fair condition. Tunnels 2
- through 7 are in good condition. (Prince 1964: 802, 810-12)
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